
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
Agenda 

Corporate and Communities 
Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
 
Tuesday, 15 November 2016, 2.00 pm 
County Hall, Worcester 
 
All County Councillors are invited to attend and participate 

Worcestershire County Council 

 
 

 

This document can be made available in other formats (large print, audio tape, computer disk and 
Braille) on request from Democratic Services on telephone number 01905 728713 or by emailing 

democraticservices@worcestershire.gov.uk 
 
 

 

Find out more online: 
www.worcestershire.gov.uk 

 



 

 

DISCLOSING INTERESTS 
 

There are now 2 types of interests: 
'Disclosable pecuniary interests' and 'other disclosable interests' 

 

WHAT IS A 'DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTEREST' (DPI)? 
 

 Any employment, office, trade or vocation carried on for profit or gain  

 Sponsorship by a 3
rd

 party of your member or election expenses 

 Any contract for goods, services or works between the Council and you, a firm where 
you are a partner/director, or company in which you hold shares 

 Interests in land in Worcestershire (including licence to occupy for a month or longer) 

 Shares etc (with either a total nominal value above £25,000 or 1% of the total issued 
share capital) in companies with a place of business or land in Worcestershire. 

 
      NB Your DPIs include the interests of your spouse/partner as well as you 
 
WHAT MUST I DO WITH A DPI? 

 Register it within 28 days and  

 Declare it where you have a DPI in a matter at a particular meeting  
- you must not participate and you must withdraw. 

      NB It is a criminal offence to participate in matters in which you have a DPI 
 

WHAT ABOUT 'OTHER DISCLOSABLE INTERESTS'? 

 No need to register them but 

 You must declare them at a particular meeting where: 
  You/your family/person or body with whom you are associated have  

a pecuniary interest in or close connection with the matter under discussion. 
 
WHAT ABOUT MEMBERSHIP OF ANOTHER AUTHORITY OR PUBLIC BODY? 
You will not normally even need to declare this as an interest. The only exception is where the 
conflict of interest is so significant it is seen as likely to prejudice your judgement of the public 
interest. 
 
DO I HAVE TO WITHDRAW IF I HAVE A DISCLOSABLE INTEREST WHICH ISN'T A DPI? 

Not normally. You must withdraw only if it: 

 affects your pecuniary interests OR  
relates to a planning or regulatory matter 

 AND it is seen as likely to prejudice your judgement of the public interest. 
 
DON'T FORGET 

 If you have a disclosable interest at a meeting you must disclose both its existence 
and nature – 'as noted/recorded' is insufficient    

 Declarations must relate to specific business on the agenda  
- General scattergun declarations are not needed and achieve little 

 Breaches of most of the DPI provisions are now criminal offences which may be 
referred to the police which can on conviction by a court lead to fines up to £5,000 
and disqualification up to 5 years 

  Formal dispensation in respect of interests can be sought in appropriate cases. 
 
Simon Mallinson Head of Legal and Democratic Services July 2012       WCC/SPM summary/f 



 

Agenda produced and published by the Head of Legal and Democratic Services, County Hall, Spetchley 
Road, Worcester WR5 2NP.  For general enquiries: 01905 763763 Worcestershire Hub: 01905 765765  
Email: worcestershirehub@worcestershire.gov.uk 
 
To obtain further information or hard copies of this agenda, please contact Samantha Morris telephone:   
Worcester 01905 844963 or Alyson Grice 01905 844962, email: scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk  
 
All the above reports and supporting information can be accessed via the Council’s website at 
http://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/info/20013/councillors_and_committees 
 
Date of Issue: Monday, 7 November 2016 

 
 

Corporate and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
Tuesday, 15 November 2016, 2.00 pm, County Hall Worcester 
 
Membership 
Councillors:  
Mr C B Taylor (Chairman), Mr S R Peters (Vice Chairman), Mr S C Cross, Mrs P E Davey, 
Mr C G Holt, Mr R C Lunn, Mrs E B Tucker, Mr P A Tuthill and Vacancy 
 

Agenda 
 

Item No Subject Page No 
 

1  Apologies and Welcome 
 
 

 

2  Declarations of Interest and of any Party Whip 
 
 

 

3  Public Participation 
Members of the public wishing to take part should notify the Head of 
Legal and Democratic Services  in writing or by e-mail indicating the 
nature and content of their proposed participation no later than 9.00am 
on the working day before the meeting (in this case 14 November 2016).  
Enquiries can be made through the telephone number/e-mail address 
below. 
 

 

4  Confirmation of the Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
 

 

5  Update on the Smallholding Strategy and the Place Partnership 
Limited Relationship and Achievements 
 
 

1 - 4 

6  Futurefit - Proposals for Change and Reform to Support the 
Medium Term Financial Plan: Commercial and  Change and 
Communities 
 
 

5 - 6 

 

mailto:scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk
http://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/info/20013/councillors_and_committees


This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM 5 
  

 
 

 

Corporate and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Panel – 15 November 2016 

 

CORPORATE AND COMMUNITIES OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY PANEL 
 
15 NOVEMBER 2016 
 
UPDATE ON THE SMALLHOLDING STRATEGY AND THE 
PLACE PARTNERSHIP LIMITED RELATIONSHIP AND 
ACHIEVEMENTS 
 

 

Summary 
 

1. At its meeting on 28 September 2016, the Panel received an update on the Property 
Asset Strategy. Following this update, the Panel identified that it would like to consider 
the Smallholding Strategy and also how the County Council's relationship with the Place 
Partnership Limited (PPL) was developing. 
 
2. Accordingly, the Cabinet Member with Responsibility for Transformation and 
Commissioning and the Director of Commercial and Change have been invited to the 
meeting to update the Panel on:        
  

a) The Smallholding Strategy. It's history, whether there was any untapped 
potential in the holdings and ideas for future development; and 

b) Place Partnership. How the relationship is working, with achievements to 
date.  

 

Smallholding Strategy  
 

Background  
 
3. The County Farms Estate otherwise known as the Smallholdings Estate was 
predominantly purchased in the early 20

th
 Century as part of a national policy to provide 

farming opportunities for new entrants, with the initiative predominantly taking off after 
the First World War, due to concerns over food security and a desire to provide a 
livelihood for returning soldiers. Some 10 years ago the Estate was 4255 acres, which 
included 247 acres of leased land, where the County Council was the tenant and then 
let the 247 acres on to farm tenants.  Since then, the 247 acres of leased land has been 
surrendered and some 960 acres of the Estate sold, generally to long standing tenants.  
 
4. Historically, the County Council has managed the Estate to generate income and to 
generate capital receipts through disposals when the opportunities arose, as well as 
through pursuing development opportunities. 

 
  

Page 1



 

Corporate and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Panel – 15 November 2016 

 

Current position 
 

5. The County's average smallholding size is 37 acres, comparing to the national 
average as at March 2015, of 83 acres. Gloucestershire County Council has an 
average of 64 acres and Warwickshire County Council's average is 101 acres. 71% of 
the County's holdings are less than 50 acres and with further increases in regulations 
and reduced opportunities to sell directly to the consumer the more challenging the 
viability of these smaller holdings become. 
 
6. A fundamental principle of owning a Smallholdings Estate is to provide a tenant the 
opportunity to progress from a starter unit to larger units through a mix of starter units, 
medium and larger units. If the Council was to develop the Smallholding Estate it would 
need to undergo significant changes. These would include creating more flexibility into 
the Estate by seeking to reduce the 50% of the Estate still let under 1986 Act tenancies 
(which are predominantly lifetime tenancies), amalgamate more of the smaller sized 
smallholdings to increase business viability and increase management efficiency and 
invest to provide more fully equipped holdings i.e. a house, farm buildings and land. 
This would have to be resourced and planned over time. 
 
7. As of today the County Council's Estate is approximately 3,048 acres (1,233 
hectares) spread between 30 parishes within the County. This is an 8.7% reduction 
since June 2015 when the management goals of the smallholdings strategy was 
approved. There are 87 tenants occupying the Estate which ranges from bare land 
holdings of a couple of acres to fully equipped holdings.  

 
8. The disposal strategy under the Better Use of Property programme includes 
disposals which maximise the approved management goals of the Smallholdings 
Estate and by the end of this strategy up to 2020 the Smallholdings Estate will be 
reduced by a further 6.1%.   

 
9. The gross rental income of the current let Estate is about £287,829 with a capital 
value subject to the existing tenancies of approximately £34million. This gives a return 
on investment of about 0.85% which is lower when taking into account Landlord repairs 
and maintenance, staff management costs and insurance etc. 

 
10. The Property Asset Strategy approved by Cabinet in March 2016 re-affirmed the 
2015 revised set of management goals for the Smallholdings Estate and the basis of 
the current management and end of tenancy action plan. These management goals are 
as follows: 

 To manage the Estate to produce an ongoing revenue surplus either through 
direct rental income or by using alternative revenue streams from non-
agricultural use.  

 To strategically improve the Estate by re-letting farms where appropriate, 
amalgamating farms to create more viable units and releasing surplus 
dwellings and buildings for sale. 

 To pursue the maximisation of the Estate’s value by seeking opportunities for 
residential and commercial development through the local planning process.  

 To use the Estate to support the County Council's wider environmental and 
sustainability objectives by appropriate land management measures 

 To explore the options for a solar farm and opportunities for sand and gravel 
extraction on smallholdings land. 
 

 
  

Page 2



 

Corporate and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Panel – 15 November 2016 

 

Review of the Smallholdings Estate by Place Partnership (PPL) 
 

11. Since the adoption of the Property Asset Strategy, PPL which manages the 
Smallholdings Estate on behalf of the County Council have undertaken a 
comprehensive review of the entire Estate. Changing from the previous in house 
management of the Estate to an external advisor also provided the opportunity for new 
and innovative approaches to the management of the Estate. Therefore as part of the 
review, PPL have simultaneously analysed and reviewed the Strategy and 
management goals for the Smallholdings Estate to identify both the opportunities and 
the challenges facing the Estate and the impact on factors such as income generation, 
capital receipts, good and sound estate management and development potential.  

 

Findings of the Review 

12. A number of issues have been identified including: 

 

i. There are a number of tenancy/legal issues which need to be addressed such 

as breaches of the terms of a tenancy agreement, unauthorised uses and 

encroachment by third parties 

ii. The Estate has become increasingly fragmented in recent years with a 

number of houses and/or buildings being sold off reducing the number of fully 

equipped holdings and with disposals constraining the creation of larger, 

more viable holdings. 

iii. The previous management plan has been more reactive rather than planned 

in terms of maintaining the fabric of the Estate and there has been no 

significant capital investment in the Estate for at least 10 years which has had 

an impact upon the condition of some buildings and potentially the overall 

value of the holdings. 

iv. Taking action to address points i and iii above will improve the overall 

performance of the Estate as an investment asset. 

 

13. The Review has identified a number of opportunities to reinforce the management 
goals including: 

 

 Seek further residential and commercial development opportunities, including 

permitted development rights where appropriate. There are a number of 

buildings/sites which can be brought forward now utilising PPL’s in-house 

planning expertise. 

 Address the tenancy/legal issues with input from a specialist agricultural lawyer 

where necessary, which will generate income and/or further capital receipt 

opportunities. 

 Further identification and disposal of isolated/fragmented blocks of bare land 

which are uneconomic to retain. 

 Undertake a review of the condition of the Estate to help provide a more 

appropriately targeted maintenance spend. 

14. The next stage will be for PPL to review the options and actions available to the 

Council and for these to be developed into recommendations to be made to the 

Cabinet Member with Responsibility for Transformation and Commissioning and the 

Director of Commercial and Change 

 

  

Page 3



 

Corporate and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Panel – 15 November 2016 

 

Place Partnership Limited 

15. PPL have been invited to attend the meeting to discuss how their relationship with 
the County Council has developed over the last year including achievements to date 
and to also present and contribute to the Smallholdings Strategy Discussion. 

 
Purpose of the Meeting 

 
16. The Corporate and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Panel is asked to: 

 Consider the update received; 

 Agree whether it would wish to make any comments to the Cabinet Member 
with Responsibility for Transformation and Commissioning; and 

 Determine whether it would wish to carry out any further scrutiny. 
 

Contact Points 
 
County Council Contact Points 
County Council: 01905 763763 
Worcestershire Hub: 01905 765765 
Email: worcestershirehub@worcestershire.gov.uk 
 
Specific Contact Points for this report 
Peter Bishop, Interim Director of Commercial and Change 01905 846020 
pbishop@worcestershire.gov.uk  
Janette Becket, Strategic Property Manager, 01905 845434 jbecket@worcestershire.gov.uk 
 

Background Papers 
 
In the opinion of the proper officer (in this case the Head of Legal and Democratic Services) 
the following are the background papers relating to the subject matter of this report: 
 
Agenda and Minutes of the Corporate and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Panel of 28 
September 2016 
Agenda and Minutes of the Cabinet 3 March 2016 which are available on the Council's 
website at:  
http://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/cms/democratic-services/minutes-and-agendas.aspx 

 
 
 
 

 

Page 4

mailto:worcestershirehub@worcestershire.gov.uk
mailto:pbishop@worcestershire.gov.uk
mailto:jbecket@worcestershire.gov.uk
http://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/cms/democratic-services/minutes-and-agendas.aspx


AGENDA ITEM 6 
   

 

Corporate and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Panel – 15 November 2016 

 

 

CORPORATE AND COMMUNITIES OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY PANEL 
15 NOVEMBER 2016 
 
FUTUREFIT – PROPOSALS FOR CHANGE AND REFORM 
TO SUPPORT THE MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN: 
COMMERCIAL AND CHANGE, AND COMMUNITIES 
 

 

Summary 
 

1. As part of the Council's development of the 2017/18 budget, the Cabinet 
Members with Responsibility for Localism and Communities, and Transformation and 
Commissioning, the Director of Commercial and Change and the Head of 
Community Services have been invited to discuss the budget challenges facing 
services in 2017/18 and how these are being addressed.  

 

Background 
 
2. The Council needs to ensure that it can continue to deliver services within a tight 
financial settlement and find solutions to deliver the necessary savings.  The Council 
is continuing to work to do things differently through the FutureFit programme, with a 
combination of efficiencies and savings proposals. 

 
3. On 17 November 2016 Cabinet will be considering progress since the last 
FutureFit update, proposals to support the delivery of the Corporate Plan (including 
the delivery of savings to 2020), and the development of the Medium Term Financial 
Plan and budget setting. 

 
4. The report to Cabinet will set out the context for the budget, as well as the 
Council's Corporate Plan Priorities and a financial summary.  The Cabinet report, 
including the savings proposals, and can be accessed on the Council's website here.  

 

2017/18 Budget Scrutiny Task Group 
 

5. On 13 September, OSPB agreed to set up a scrutiny task group to undertake in-
depth scrutiny of the 2017/18 budget.  Chairmen of Overview and Scrutiny Panels 
and HOSC will be invited to attend a meeting of the task group in early December to 
feedback the views of their Panels/Committee on the outcomes of Corporate 
Strategy Planning discussions and the savings proposals outlined in the Cabinet 
report. 

 

Equality and Diversity Implications 
 

14. Last year's budget scrutiny task group gave a "light touch" consideration to 
equalities issues raised by savings proposals and suggested that the Diversity 
Manager should be invited to the Panel to help members consider the Equalities 
Impact of each Corporate Strategy proposal.   

Page 5

http://worcestershire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=131&Year=0


 

Corporate and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Panel – 15 November 2016 

 

 

Purpose of the meeting 
 

15.  The Panel is asked to consider and agree comments on the savings proposals 
for Commercial and Change, and Communities, which the Chairman will feed back to 
the 2017/18 Budget Scrutiny Task Group. 

 

Supporting Information 
 

 Report to Cabinet on 17 November 2016 – circulated to Members of the Panel (to 
follow) and available electronically on the Council's website here. 

 

Contact Points 
 
County Council Contact Points 
Worcestershire County Council; 01905 763763 
Worcestershire Hub: 01905 765765 
Email: Worcestershirehub@worcestershire.gov.uk 
 
Specific Contact Points for this report 
Alyson Grice / Samantha Morris, Overview and Scrutiny Officers 
Tel: 01905 844962/844963 
Email: scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk 
 

Background Papers 
 
In the opinion of the proper officer (in this case the Head of Legal and Democratic 
Services) the following are the background papers relating to the subject matter of this 
report: 
 

 Agenda and Minutes of the Overview and Scrutiny Performance Board on 13 
September 2016 

 Agenda and Minutes of the Corporate and Communities Overview and Scrutiny 
Panel on 4 November 2015 

 

Page 6

http://worcestershire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=131&Year=0
mailto:Worcestershirehub@worcestershire.gov.uk
mailto:scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk

	Agenda
	5 Update on the Smallholding Strategy and the Place Partnership Limited Relationship and Achievements
	6 Futurefit - Proposals for Change and Reform to Support the Medium Term Financial Plan: Commercial and  Change and Communities

